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    SBIR/STTR ALERTING SERVICE   *  December 19, 2003
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The SBIR/STTR Alerting Service is a free service that provides bi-weekly notification of SBIR and STTR solicitation announcements, news and information, and Internet resources relevant to the SBIR/STTR programs.  This service is provided by the Economic Development Office of Pacific Northwest National Laboratory (PNNL).

Back issues of the SBIR Alert are available on the World Wide Web at www.pnl.gov/edo/sbir.stm.  Subscription and keyword search instructions appear at the end of this newsletter.   

The next newsletter will be posted on January 9, 2004.  

Happy Holidays!

NEWS IN THIS ISSUE

--  DOE FY 2004 SBIR/STTR Solicitation Deadline Reminder

--  2004 NIH SBIR/STTR Grant Solicitation Release Date
--  DoD Accepting Proposals for 2004.1 SBIR Solicitation; Changes
--  SBIR Proposal Writing Tip

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

             SBIR/STTR NEWS AND INFORMATION

--  DOE FY 2004 SBIR/STTR Solicitation Deadline Reminder

The closing date for grant application submission in response to the Department of Energy (DOE) FY 2004 SBIR/STTR Program Solicitation is January 6, 2004.  The solicitation states that “Any grant application received after 5:00 p.m. EST on Tuesday, January 6, 2004, will be considered late unless it was sent by the U.S. Postal Service post marked no later than December 26, 2003…Late grant applications will not be eligible for award and will be declined without review.  The Department takes no responsibility for applications arriving past the deadline.”
Don’t forget to include your Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number on the SBIR/STTR Grant Application Cover Page.  Also, .keep in mind that the following notice was posted on the DOE SBIR/STTR web site (http://www.science.doe.gov/sbir/) on December 2:  “The Instructions for Completing Appendix C (Budget Instructions) have been revised. Item C under General has been deleted.”  This item had read “Please do not use cents, round up to the nearest dollar.”
For more information regarding the solicitation or the DOE SBIR program, contact the SBIR/STTR Program Office:

SC-32/Germantown Building
U.S. Department of Energy
1000 Independence Ave., S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20585-1290
(301) 903-1414
sbir-sttr@science.doe.gov   

--  2004 NIH SBIR/STTR Grant Solicitation Release Date
The National Institutes of Health (NIH) announced on their Small Business Funding Opportunities website (http://grants1.nih.gov/grants/funding/sbir.htm) this week that ‘The "Omnibus Solicitation of the National Institutes of Health, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and Food and Drug Administration for the Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) and Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR) Grant Applications" will be released on or about January 5. Applications will be accepted for receipt on April 1, August 1, and December 1, 2004’. 

--  NSF Accepting Proposals for FY-2003 SBIR/STTR Solicitation 
Proposals may now be submitted for the topics Advanced Materials, Manufacturing, and Chemical Processes (AM) and Biotechnology (BT) in response to the National Science Foundation (NSF) FY-2003 (SBIR/STTR) Phase I Solicitation.  Proposals are due January 20, 2004.  The solicitation is available on the NSF SBIR website at http://www.eng.nsf.gov/sbir/.
The AM topic has been grouped into three broad areas of interest, (A) Advanced Materials, (B) Manufacturing, and (C) Chemical Processes.  The area of interest and associated subtopics are listed below: 

A. Advanced Materials

1. Environmentally Benign Technology

2. High Temperature Materials

3. Structural Materials

4. Corrosion Resistant Coatings

5. Tribological and Wear Resistant Coatings

6. Engineered Materials

7. Surface Modification and Thin Film Technology

B. Manufacturing 

1. Polymer Processing and Rheology

2. Casting/Molding Processes

3. Machining and Material Removal Processes

4. Deformation Processes

5. Powder Material Processing

6. Composite Manufacturing Processes

7. Additive Manufacturing

8. Manufacturing Process Control

9. Machine Design

10. Joining and Assembly Processes

11. Non-traditional Material Removal Processes

12. Manufacturing Systems

C. Chemical Processes

1. Separations Applications

2. Novel Catalytic Systems

3. Photochemical or Electrochemical Applications

4. Fluid Flow Applications

5. Combustion-Related Processes

6. Applications of Plasma Technology

7. Thermal Energy Applications

8. Reactor Engineering Applications

9. Chemical Technology

Inquires for the subtopics under this topic can be directed to the specific SBIR/STTR Program Manager listed below:

Joseph Hennessey (jhenness@nsf.gov) 703-292-7069

Subtopic A. Advanced Materials

Cheryl Albus (calbus@nsf.gov) 703-292-7051

Subtopic B. Manufacturing Processes

Rosemarie Wesson (rwesson@nsf.gov) 703-292-7070

Subtopic C. Chemical Processes

The subtopics under the BT topic are as follows:
A. Genome Enabled Biotechnology 

B. Biological Informatics (including Biometrics)

C. Biochips 

D. Combinatorial Biotechnology 

E. Environmental Biotechnology (Including Bioremediation) 

F. Ecological Engineering and Biocomplexity in the Environment 

G. Agricultural and Food Biotechnology 

H. Marine Biotechnology (Including Aquaculture) 

I. Industrial Bioproducts 

J. Sensors, Biosensors, Diagnostics and Instrumentation

K. Biomass Processing

L. Bioprocess Engineering

M. Biomedical Engineering / Research to Aid Persons with Disabilities

N. Tissue Engineering 

O. Metabolic Engineering 

P. Biomaterials 

Q. Pharmaceutical Drug Delivery 

R. Biotechnology at the Nanoscale 

Inquires can be directed to Om Sahai, SBIR/STTR Biotechnology Program Manager, at 703-292-7795 or e-mail at osahai@nsf.gov.

--  SBIR Proposal Writing Tip

The following proposal writing tip was provided by Gail & Jim Greenwood.  Past SBIR proposal writing articles written by the Greenwoods are available on the Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc. (GCGI) web site at http://g-jgreenwood.home.att.net.

SBIR Proposal Writing Basics:  Using Federal Labs in the STTR Program
Copyright © 2003 by Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.

Many of you are aware of the Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR) program, which is the smaller and less well known sibling to the SBIR program.  Some of you also know that the STTR program requires that the proposing firm (which must be a small business) collaborate or otherwise team with a university, Federal Laboratory, or other non-profit research institution on the research effort.  And those of you who are really “in the know” are aware that the STTR program was reauthorized by Congress recently, and as part of that legislation this little program doubled in size and Phase 1 and 2 awards can be as large as those in the SBIR program ($100k and $750k, respectively).  With many of the agencies currently or soon to request STTR proposals, we thought we would focus on two important reasons why you may want to pursue STTR as well as SBIR in your high tech marketing efforts.  

The first reason to consider submitting a proposal under the STTR program is the potential for a higher rate of awards than in the SBIR program.  STTR has traditionally not attracted as many proposals per topic, for a number of reasons.  This fiscal year, the STTR funding is doubled, but we don’t expect the number of proposals to double, so your odds of success may be even better.  This doesn’t mean that sloppy or half-baked proposals will be funded, but it can mean that the agencies can fund more or all of the high quality proposals they receive (in SBIR, some very good proposals don’t get funded because there simply is not enough money to go around).  

The second reason to consider the STTR program is a little less obvious.  Traditionally, Federal Laboratories have been allowed to be research partners on both SBIR and STTR projects.  However, there is a distinction between government owned, government operated (GOGO) and government owned, contractor operated (GOCO) federal labs.  SBA issued a policy directive in late 2002 that greatly limits the use of both GOGO and GOCO federal labs in SBIR projects.  Therefore, you are not allowed to use a GOGO or GOCO on your SBIR project unless you justify the unique resource that the lab brings to your project and get an SBA waiver to do so.  But when it comes to STTR, there is no question that a GOCO federal laboratory, if it is listed as a Federally Funded Research and Development Center (FFRDC), can be your research partner.  FFRDCs are permitted because the STTR legislation specifically includes them as possible research partners.

So what are the FFRDCs?    Most are U.S. Department of Energy owned Federal Laboratories, like Sandia, Los Alamos, Oak Ridge, and Pacific Northwest National Laboratories.  There are currently 36 FFRDCs under eight different Federal agencies. For a list, see http://www.nsf.gov/sbe/srs/nsf03308/start.htm. 

Therefore, if you plan on using an FFRDC in your project, you may want to consider applying for an STTR award.  It is still possible to involve an FFRDC in an SBIR project, but there is greater uncertainty about being allowed to do so because of the SBA waiver requirement.  We don’t want to overstate this, however:  we understand that the SBA has promptly and fairly considered requests for waivers on SBIR projects involving an FFRDC.   

A word of caution if you plan to use an FFRDC on an STTR: even though we have summarized SBA’s guidance on this issue, we know that there is some inconsistency between this and the practice of some of the STTR awarding agencies.  Also, we have witnessed an occasional problem in which the awarding STTR agency does not like an FFRDC and/or its parent Federal agency, and as a result proposals that include that FFRDC may be downgraded.  Therefore, we recommend that you start the process early if you plan to include an FFRDC in your STTR proposal, and that you talk with the awarding agency to make sure that they are “okay” with the FFRDC you are planning to use.  
Gail and Jim Greenwood may be reached at the following address:

Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.

1150 Junonia

Sanibel, FL  33957

(239) 395-9446 (voice & fax)

g-jgreenwood@att.net (email)

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
               CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS

NATIONAL

National SBIR/STTR Conference, Atlanta, GA, April 26-29, 2004.  The National Science Foundation, in association with the Department of Defense and the Small Business Administration, and all 10 SBIR agencies is sponsoring this 2004 National SBIR/STTR Conference. Program Managers and representatives from all participating agencies will provide insight into how to work with their respective agencies and answer your own special questions during the one-on- one opportunities.  Contact Sharon DelaBarre at sharon@dbamlg.com or 360-683-5742.  

6th Annual NIH SBIR/STTR Conference, Bethesda, MD, June 23-24, 2004.  This conference will offer the opportunity to interact one-on-one with NIH Program Directors, Grants Management Specialists, and Review staff.  Contact Sarah Shane at shanes@od.nih.gov for more information.
REGIONAL

SBIR Checklist Workshop, Herndon, VA, January 8, 2004.  This half-day workshop, sponsored by Virginia's Center for Innovative Technology (CIT), will address how to deal with, the most important competitive issues that should be addressed in order to improve the chances of winning SBIR/STTR funding.   For more information, contact Robert Brooke at rbrooke@cit.org or 703-689-3080, or visit http://www.cit.org/calendar-details.asp#checklist-herndon. 
Regional SBIR/STTR Tech Partnering Conference, St. Louis, MO, January 8-9, 2004.  Winners of federal grant programs, agency program managers, local service providers, and officials from large companies and universities will be on hand to meet and offer networking opportunities.  For more information, contact Emerging Technologies  at intern@emergingtech.org or 314-615-6900.
* SBIR/STTR Phase II Proposal Development Workshop, Edmond, OK, January 20-21, 2004.  The Oklahoma Center for the Advancement of Science and Technology (OCAST) and the Edmond Economic Development Authority are sponsoring this free workshop, which will provide an opportunity to participate in a "hands-on" classroom-style approach to writing a winning SBIR Phase II proposal.  Anyone that has won a SBIR or STTR Phase I grant or contract, and/or anyone that has submitted an SBIR Phase II proposal - but did not win, are encouraged to attend.  Contact: Dan Luton at dluton@ocast.state.ok.us, or 405-524-1357 for more information.
SBIR/STTR Phase I Proposal Development Workshop, Oklahoma City, OK, February 10-11, 2004.  The Oklahoma Center for the Advancement of Science and Technology (OCAST) is Announcing a Free SBIR/STTR Phase I Proposal Development Workshop.  This workshop, sponsored by Francis Tuttle Career and Technology Center, will provide the opportunity to participate in a "hands-on" classroom-style approach to writing a winning Phase I Proposal.  The Meridian Technology Center for Business Development - Instructors with current experience in SBIR proposal preparation and cost accounting - will conduct the workshop which is designed for anyone who would like a quick over view of the program (Tuesday morning only); anyone that is planning to participate in the SBIR or STTR Phase I program; and anyone that has submitted an SBIR Phase I proposal - but did not win.  To register, send an email with your name, company name, address, phone number, and e-mail address to Michelle Gilliland at michelleg@meridian-technology.com.  For more information, call 405-377-2220, or visit http://www.ocast.state.ok.us/sbra.htm.

SBIR/STTR Workshop, Wilmington, NC, February 10, 2004.  For more information, visit the North Carolina SBTDC web site (www.sbtdc.org), or contact John Ujvari, SBIR Program Specialist at sbir@sbtdc.org or 919-962-8297.  

SBIR/STTR Workshop, NC A&T University, February 24, 2004.  For more information, visit the North Carolina SBTDC web site (www.sbtdc.org), or contact John Ujvari, SBIR Program Specialist at sbir@sbtdc.org or 919-962-8297.  

SBIR/STTR Workshop, East Carolina University, Greenville, NC, March 10, 2004.  For more information, visit the North Carolina SBTDC web site (www.sbtdc.org), or contact John Ujvari, SBIR Program Specialist at sbir@sbtdc.org or 919-962-8297.  

SBIR/STTR Workshop, UNC Chapel Hill, Chapel Hill, NC, April 13, 2004.  For more information, visit the North Carolina SBTDC web site (www.sbtdc.org), or contact John Ujvari, SBIR Program Specialist at sbir@sbtdc.org or 919-962-8297.  

Other possible SBIR training opportunities include:

SOCOM Regional SBIR Conference, Tampa Bay area, Florida, February 10-12, 2004

* Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc will provide training at these workshops.  Any attendee of one of these workshops is entitled to a free critique of his or her draft SBIR or STTR proposal.  If you have questions, contact Gail or Jim Greenwood at (239) 395-9446 (voice & fax) or g-jgreenwood@att.net, or visit their web site at http://g-jgreenwood.home.att.net.  

If you are sponsoring or are aware of SBIR workshops in your area and would like to post an announcement feel free to contact us.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
              SOLICITATIONS CURRENTLY OPEN

SBIR

DOE FY 2004 SBIR/STTR, due January 6, 2004
DOC NOAA FY04 SBIR, due January 14, 2004
DoD FY04.1 SBIR, due January 15, 2004

NSF SBIR/STTR (AM & BT topics), due January 20, 2004

DOC NIST FY04 SBIR, due January 30, 2004

STTR 

DOE FY 2004 SBIR/STTR, due January 6, 2004

NSF SBIR/STTR (AM & BT topics), due January 20, 2004
COMING SOON

DOEd FY04 SBIR, expected mid-December

DoD FY04 STTR, expected January 2, 2004

DOT 2004 SBIR, expected February 17, 2004
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
                 SBIR/STTR INFO ON THE INTERNET

PARTICIPATING AGENCY SBIR WEB SITES:

Department of Agriculture
      http://www.reeusda.gov/sbir 

Department of Commerce
      National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
         http://www.ofa.noaa.gov/~amd/sbirs/sbir.html
      National Institute of Standards and Technology
         http://patapsco.nist.gov/ts_sbir/ 

Department of Defense
      http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu/sbir or
      http://www.dodsbir.net  
        Defense Technical Information Center
           http://www.dtic.mil/dtic/sbir/ 
        Air Force
           http://www.afrl.af.mil/sbir/index.htm 
        Army
           http://www.aro.army.mil/arowash/rt/sbir/sbir.htm 
        Chemical and Biological Defense Program (CBD)
        Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (DARPA)
           http://www.darpa.mil/sbir/ 
        Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA)
           http://www.dtra.mil/acq/business/acq%5Fsmallbus.html 
        Missile Defense Agency (MDA)
           http://www.winbmdo.com/
        Navy
           http://www.navysbir.com/
        National Imagery and Mapping Agency (NIMA)
           http://www.nima.mil/poc/contracts/sbir/sbir.html 
        Office of the Secretary of Defense (OSD)
        Special Operations Command (SOCOM)
           http://soal.socom.mil/index.cfm?page=sadbu&sb=sbir 
         SBIR Interactive Technical Information System (SITIS)
           http://dtica.dtic.mil/sbir/index.html 

Department of Education
      http://www.ed.gov/programs/sbir/index.html
Department of Energy
      http://www.science.doe.gov/sbir 

Homeland Security Advanced Research Projects Agency (HSARPA)
      http://www.hsarpasbir.com/index.asp
Department of Transportation
      http://www.volpe.dot.gov/sbir 

Environmental Protection Agency
      http://es.epa.gov/ncerqa/sbir/ 

National Institutes of Health
      http://grants1.nih.gov/grants/funding/sbir.htm 

National Aeronautics & Space Administration
      http://sbir.nasa.gov/
National Science Foundation
      http://www.eng.nsf.gov/sbir
Small Business Administration
      http://www.sba.gov/SBIR/ 

NATIONAL RESOURCES (GOVERNMENT/NON-PROFIT)
CRIS (Current Research Information System)

      http://cris.csrees.usda.gov/
CRISP (Computer Retrieval of Information on Scientific Projects)

      http://www.crisp.cit.nih.gov/
Federal Business Opportunities

      http://www.fedbizopps.gov/
Grants.gov

      http://www.grants.gov
Pacific Northwest National Laboratory Economic Development Office

      http://www.pnl.gov/edo/business.stm
SBA Tech-Net

      http://tech-net.sba.gov/ 

State Science and Technology Institute 

      http://www.ssti.org
STATE/REGIONAL SBIR AND SMALL BUSINESS RESOURCES

Arkansas SBDC SBIR/STTR Program
      http://www.asbdc.ualr.edu/sbir/grants/
Hawaii SBIR program (HDTC)
      http://www.htdc.org/sbir/ 

Idaho EPSCoR Program

      http://www.webs.uidaho.edu/sbir/
Indiana Industrial Research Liaison Program (IRLP)
      http://www.indiana.edu/~irlp/index.html
Minnesota Project Innovation
      http://www.mpi.org/
MoFAST: Moving Missouri's Innovations to Market
      www.mofast.net
NASA Illinois Commercialization Center (NICC)
      www.nasa-illinois.org 
North Carolina SBTDC SBIR Outreach
      http://www.sbtdc.org/technology/sbirsttr.asp 

Ohio SBIR Program
      http://www.odod.state.oh.us/tech/sbir/ 

Small Business High Technology Institute

      http://www.sbhti.org/
South Dakota SBIR Center
      http://www.sbir.dsu.edu 

Virginia’s Center for Innovative Technology

      http://www.cit.org/
Washington State Fed and State Tech Partnership Program (WaFAST)
      http://wafast.org/index.html
Washington State Small Business Development Center
      http://www.sbdc.wsu.edu 

Wyoming SBIR/STTR Initiative
      http://www.uwyo.edu/sbir/
OTHER RESOURCES AND CONSULTING SERVICES

Bid Data Line
      http://www.biddataline.com/fed/
Biotechnology Business Consultants, LLC
      http://www.bioconsultants.com
Centurion Technology
      http://www.centuriontechnology.com/
Cohen International, SBIR Consulting
      http://rogercohen.com/sbir
Greenwood Consulting Group, Inc.
      http://g-jgreenwood.home.att.net 

InKnowVation Online
      http://www.inknowvation.com
Innovation Partnership
      http://www.innovationpartnership.net/
National SBIR Conference Center
      http://sbirworld.com/
PBC SBIR Services
      www.sbirinfo.com
      www.sbirhelpdesk.com
      www.pbcinc.com
Piquero Insights, Inc.

      http://www.piqueroinc.com/
Research Editing

      http://www.researchediting.com 

SBIR Gateway 
      http://www.zyn.com/sbir/ 

SBIR Resource Center
      http://www.win-sbir.com/ 

SciBiz Services
      http://www.scibiz.net/
ScienceWise.com
      http://www.sciencewise.com/.
Small Business Technology Coalition 
      http://www.sbtc.org
Tech BizSolutions, Inc.
      http://www.techbizsolutions.com/
The SBIR Coach - Fred Patterson
      http://www.SBIRcoach.com 
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                  SUBSCRIPTION INSTRUCTIONS

To SUBSCRIBE to the SBIR-Alert mailing list, send an email to lyris@lyris.pnl.gov with the following in the subject line or body of your message (your name is optional):

    subscribe sbir-alert first_name last_name

    example:  subscribe sbir-alert joe smith

To UNSUBSCRIBE, send a blank email to:

leave-sbir-alert@lyris.pnl.gov 

To receive (or cancel) SBIR/STTR notices via FAX, send a request with your name, company, phone and fax number to (509) 372-4370.

You may also subscribe, unsubscribe, and view back-issues of the SBIR Alert by accessing the following Internet web site: 


http://lyris.pnl.gov/cgi-bin/?enter=sbir-alert
To access back-issues, connect to the site above, enter your email address (a password is not needed to connect), select 'connect' then 'read messages.'  A keyword search is also available if you wish to search for issues containing a particular subject or topic of interest.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
        HOW TO REACH US

If you have any comments, suggestions, or would like to submit items for the next issue please contact us:

Richard Fowler - richard.fowler@pnl.gov - (509) 372-4332

Gary Spanner - gary.spanner@pnl.gov - (509) 372-4296

